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MR RITCHE (Okay. W're going to
call the August 15th neeting of the Board of Zoning
Appeal s for Kiawah Island to order. The board
menbers who will hear the case today are Ron
Hacker, Tom Burke, Nancy Zisk, Herk Sins, Charlie
Larsen, and nyself, Ron Ritchie. The staff people
present are Sally Brooks and Jenny Werking, and
Sally Rhoad is here pinch hitting for her husband,
Denni s.

Qur case rulings fromthis and any
ot her BZA neeting are avail able for public review
and i nspection during nornmal business hours right
here at Town Hall. At this tine, I"mobligated to
explain the workings of the BZA. W are a
guasi -j udi cial body established to interpret and
grant relief fromthe zoning ordi nance.

Today we're going to hear a variance
request. Variances nmay be granted when strict
application of the zoning ordi nance would create an
unnecessary hardship. This board's action nust be
based on specific standards as contained in the
Sout h Carolina Local Governnent Planning Enabling
Act of 1994 as well as this Town's Zoni ng
Ordinance. A sinple majority vote of the quorum

present is required to grant a vari ance.

Clark and Associates Inc.

Page: 3



© 00 N o 0o b~ w N BRP

N DN DD D MDD P PP PP, PR
o A W N P O © 00 N O O~ w N O

Deposition of Kiawah Island Board of Zoning Appeals

Because today's hearing is a public
fact-finding neeting, we are in conpliance with the
Freedom of Information Act and South Carolina Code
6-29-70. 15 days prior to this hearing, an
announcenent was printed in the Post and Courier, a
sign was posted right in front of the property that
we're going to hear the variance about, and a
notice was nailed to the applicant or a
representative, to residents within 300 feet of the
application, and any other parties of interest.

Per sons, organizations, and news nedi a
t hat have requested decl aration of our neeting have
al so been notified. The Freedom of I|Information Act
does not require notification of anybody other than
the applicant and possible parties of interest.

Qur purpose today is for interested
parties to be heard in order to assist the board in
gat hering evidence pertinent to each case. |If the
menbers of the BZA feel the need for further
i nformation to clarify the case, we have the
authority to subpoena w tnesses.

In addition to testinony, the board has
been presented with witten information submtted
to the staff by the applicant or their agent in

this particular case. This information is now
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consi dered evidence and is entered into the
per manent record of this body, and we assune it is
conplete, true, and accurate.

Al so, we have been presented data
assenbl ed by the staff for the purpose of
clarifying the location and the effect on
surroundi ng property. This board is enpowered to
approve, approve with conditions, or to deny the
request for a variance. W also have the option to
defer a case if we think we need additional
I nf ormati on.

If an applicant's request is approved
for the variance, they nust go to the office of
Charl eston County Pl anni ng Departnent on Bridge
View Drive, that's up in North Charleston, to
obtain a permt. Variances granted by the BZA are
valid for 12 nonths after the date of this hearing.

However, if the request is disapproved
and the applicant w shes to appeal the decision of
t he board, appeals nmust be addressed to the Circuit
Court. South Carolina Code 6-29-820 states that
t he appeal nust be filed by the applicant within 30
days after the decision of the board is nailed to
the applicant, not today's date, 30 days after it's

mailed. Failure to file an appeal within the tine
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limt deprives the Court of the jurisdiction to
hear the matter.

Because this is a quasi-judicial body,
everything said in this neeting nust be conpletely
true and accurate. All the information provided to
the BZA is considered evidence, and this board nay
certify contenpt of Crcuit Court if false
statenents are nmade, either in witing or orally.

Because of this, each person who w shes
to address the board on this particular variance
request will be sworn in. | now ask everybody who
IS going to speak this afternoon either for or
against this variance if they would pl ease stand
and be sworn in.

(Wtnesses sworn.)

MR RITCH E: Thank you. | shall now
call case BZAV-7-11-11552 concerning the property
at 248 3 en Abbey. The staff will now present
facts pertinent to the case. | shall then call the
applicant to address the case. | would ask that
the applicant or the applicant's representative
pl ease stand, go over to the podium state their
nanme and their current address.

Il will then ask for all those speaking

either for or against this case. And we then are
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going to close the hearing, and |I'm going to ask
the board for a notion on this particul ar variance.
The board will then have a discussion and then vote
on the case.

The chair will announce for the record
who nmade the notion and seconded the notion and how
nmenbers voted, yes, no, or abstained. After the
vote, the chair announces for the record the | egal
reasons for the decision.

kay. Sally, you're on.

M5. BROCKS: Ckay. Thanks. The
applicant, Marshall Driver, is requesting a
variance to increase the required 33 percent
maxi mum | ot coverage by 3 percent to 36 percent at
238 A en Abbey in the residential (R-1) zoning
district wwthin the devel oped | ands of Ki awah
| sl and.

The property owner is Vickie Frazier
Lockridge. The property is 14,994.5 square feet in
size with a 25-foot front setback al ong G en Abbey,
a 15-foot side yard setback, and a 30-foot rear
yard setback along the golf course. The current
| ot coverage is 4,980 square feet, which is 33
per cent.

12A-205 (R 1), Residential, Table 2B:
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Lot Standards of the Town of Kiawah Island Land Use
Pl anni ng/ Zoni ng Ordi nance requires a maxi num | ot
coverage of 33 percent when the lot size is 12,000
square feet or greater for the (R 1) single-famly
det ached dwel | i ng.

The ordi nance defines | ot coverage as,
guote, total percentage of |lot area that is
| npervi ous, including buildings and pervious
dri veways and wal kways and ot her pervi ous paved
areas including pervious decks and porches, end
quot e.

The applicant is requesting the
I ncreased | ot coverage in order to construct an
addition off the existing screened-in porch at the
rear of the residence. The site plan depicts the
addition that consists of an el evated pool, pool
deck, and planter equalling 325 square feet. The
appl i cant proposes to renove 36 square feet of the
deck on the opposite side of the screened-in porch.

The Ki awah |sland Architectural Review
Board vari ance request approval dated June 29th,
2011, states, quote, ARB approved due to existing
home | ocation driven by preservation of trees which
caused need for extra coverage and, therefore, no

ability to expand footprint w thout variance, end
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quot e.

The variance criteria used noted on the

Ki awah |sland ARB | etter states, quote, the
original design allowed for the conservation of
several live oak trees in the front yard. This
concept positioned the footprint of the house
farther fromthe street, increasing the size and
conplexity of the driveway, end quote.

The applicant's letter of intent
explains, quote, the site plan depicts that there
are six live oak trees in the front yard of the
site that were retained as part of the original
desi gn and necessitated positioning the hone
farther fromthe street which increased the size,
conpl exity, and coverage of the driveway, end
quot e.

A site visit was conducted on July
27th, 2011, at which tine the foll ow ng
determ nati ons were nmade regardi ng the approval
criteria for variances as stated in Article 12 of
t he Town of Kiawah |Island Code of Ordinances,
Article 12A, Land Use Pl anning, Zoning, Section
12A-509. 4.

Findings of fact: Criteria 1. There

are extraordi nary and exceptional conditions

Clark and Associates Inc.

Page: 9



© 00 N o 0o b~ w N BRP

N DN DD D MDD P PP PP, PR
o A W N P O © 00 N O O~ w N O

Deposition of Kiawah Island Board of Zoning Appeals

pertaining to the particul ar piece of property.

Staff's response: There may be
extraordi nary and exceptional conditions pertaining
to the property due to the position and | ayout of
the existing residence and driveway. The residence
I s set back away fromthe roadway and has a doubl e
front | oadi ng garage underneath. The driveway
splits to access each garage door and has a
turnaround area on each side for egress from each
gar age.

It appears that the driveway was
configured to avoid a cluster of oak trees in the
m ddl e of the front yard. The driveway al one
covers 13.9 percent of the |ot area.

Criteria 2: These conditions do not
generally apply to other property in the vicinity.

Staff's response: These conditions nay
not generally apply to other properties in the
vicinity because | ot configuration varies
t hr oughout the surrounding area due to site
speci fic conditions.

Criteria 3: Because of these
conditions, the application of this ordinance to
the particul ar piece of property would effectively

prohi bit or unreasonably restrict the utilization
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of the property.

Staff's response: The application of
this ordi nance to 248 3 en Abbey woul d not prohibit
the utilization of the property; however, the
application of this ordinance would restrict the
addition of the pool to this particular piece of
property.

Criteria 4: The authorization of the
variance will not be of substantial detrinent to
adj acent property or to the public good, and the
character of the zoning district wll not be harned
by the granting of the variance.

Staff's response: The authorization of
this variance may not be of substantial detrinent
to the adjacent properties as long as the existing
vegetati on, which creates a natural buffer al ong
the side property line, is protected in order to
provi de adequate screening and preserve the
character of the zoning district.

Criteria 5: The Board of Zoning
Appeal s shall not grant a variance the effect of
whi ch would be to allow the establishnment of a use
not otherw se permtted in a zoning district, to
extend physically a nonconform ng use of land or to

change the zoning district boundaries shown on the

Clark and Associates Inc.

Page: 11



© 00 N o 0o b~ w N BRP

N DN DD D MDD P PP PP, PR
o A W N P O © 00 N O O~ w N O

Deposition of Kiawah Island Board of Zoning Appeals

of ficial zoning nmap.

Staff's response: Ganting of this
vari ance would not allow the establishnment of a use
not otherwi se permtted in this zoning district,
extend physically a nonconform ng use of |and, or
change the zoning district boundaries.

Criteria 6: The fact that property nay
be utilized nore profitably should a variance be
granted may not be considered grounds for a
vari ance.

Staff's response: The property may be
utilized nore profitably if this variance is
gr ant ed.

Criteria 7: The need for the variance
shall not be the result of the applicant's own
actions.

Staff's response: The applicant's
| etter of intent contends, quote, the need for the
requested variance is not a result of the
applicant's own actions but a reflection of the
natural environnmental conditions and the site
configuration, end quote.

Additionally, the variance request
approval fromthe Kiawah |Island ARB dated June

29t h, 2011, states, quote, the original design
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all owed for the conservation of several |ive oak
trees in the front yard. This concept positioned
the footprint of the house further fromthe street
I ncreasing the size and conplexity of the driveway,
end quot e.

However, a pool is an accessory
structure that is incidental and subordinate to the
principal single-famly residence. Therefore the
need for the variance may be created by the
applicant's own acti ons.

Criteria 8 Ganting the variance wl |
not be contrary to the public or neighbor interest
nor will not adversely affect other property in the
vicinity nor interfere wwth the harnony, spirit,

I ntent, and purpose of these regqgul ations.

Staff's response: Ganting of this
variance may not be contrary to the public or
nei ghborhood interest, may not adversely affect
ot her property in the vicinity nor interfere with
t he harnony, spirit, intent, and purpose of these
regul ations as |long as existing natural features
i ncluding trees are preserved.

Criteria 9: Ganting of the variance
does not substantially conflict with the

conpr ehensi ve plan or the purposes of this

Clark and Associates Inc.
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or di nance.

Staff's response: Ganting of this
variance may not substantially conflict with the
conpr ehensi ve plan or the purposes of this
ordi nance. Housing elenent 8, goals 1,
| npl enmentati on strategy A of the conprehensive plan
states, quote, provide nechanisns to permt
flexibility and innovation in residential project
design to pronote | and use efficiency and
envi ronnental protection, end quote.

Staff recommendation: This request nay
not neet the requirenents of the section 12A-5009,
criteria 3 and 7, variances, as stated in the
staff's responses and the findings of fact.

Action: The Board of Zoning Appeals
may approve, approve with conditions, or deny case
nunber BZAV-7-11-11552 based on the findings of
fact unless additional information is deened
necessary to make an i nfornmed decision. Are there
any questions of staff?

MR. RITCH E: Board have any questions
of staff?

MR. BURKE: | notice that the adjacent
property seens to have a pool as well. Do you

happen to know what the | ot coverage is on that

Clark and Associates Inc.
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site?

M5. BROOKS: | do not. No, | don't.

MR RITCH E: You have to neke the
assunption, though, it would be 33 percent or |ess,
assune that.

MR. BURKE: Well, it could have had a
vari ance too.

MR RITCH E: Coul d have.

MR. LARSEN. | had a question rel ated
to that. And | neant to | ook up inpervious and
pervious as in the -- page 1 in the staff review,
second paragraph. Because that house, 287, has a
stone driveway, crushed stone.

M5. BROOKS: Yeah.

MR. LARSEN. My question is if this
driveway were crushed stone, does that count as
part of the 33 percent?

M5. BROOKS: It would -- under the
definition in the ordi nance, even a stone driveway,
gravel, would count toward | ot coverage.

MR. LARSEN. So it doesn't matter if
it's paved or not paved?

M5. BROOKS:. That's correct.

MR SIMS: Followup to that. At what

poi nt does a driveway cease to be a part of the 33

Clark and Associates Inc.
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and a third percent? For instance, if it were
grass?

M5. BROOKS: That would be a case where
it would not be considered --

MR SIMS: If it were pine straw?

M5. BROOKS: That woul d not be
consi dered | ot coverage either.

MR SIMS: If it were pine bark? So at
what point does it cease to be pervious --

MR. LARSEN:. Pervious or inpervious.

MR SIMS: -- and becone part of the --

M5. BROOKS: | would say if it were
gravel or |ike a paver of sone sort, that's where
we draw the line, | suppose. W could get a
further determnation on that from Dan, but | nean,
that's how | would say.

MR SIMS: So it's fuzzy?

M5. BROCOKS: To interpretation.

MR RITCH E: Okay, Sally. 1 think
everybody's asked questions that they'd |ike to.
Thank you.

MR BURKE: | do -- I'msorry.

MR RITCHE Onh sorry. Go ahead.

MR. BURKE: Most of the tine when we

| ook at these cases, the | ot coverage seens to be

Clark and Associates Inc.
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36 percent. |Is there a high incidence of 33
percent on Ki awah?

M5. BROCKS: As in people nmaxim zing
their lot coverage? | would say.

MR. BURKE: Well, | nean, are there a
| ot of streets that are 33 percent? Qur street is
36.

M5. WERKING  They're either 33 or 40
per cent.

M5. BROOKS: Right. The only cases, |
guess, where we woul d be able to approve
adm nistratively sonething over 33 percent or
whatever it's listed, if it is in the undevel oped
| ands where we can do a 20 percent -- or 10 percent
adm ni strative increase through the devel opnent
agreenent, but --

M5. WERKING And then there's cases of
| egal nonconform ng. And what happens in those is
if you're really supposed to be 33 percent, but
you're already 36 and you're wanting to -- we do
allow that, like if you' re wanting to switch out
sonething for sonething else, as long as it stays
33. You can't go to -- or sorry. 36. You
couldn't go to 36.1.

MR HACKER O is it a function of how

Clark and Associates Inc.
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many square feet the ot is? Because if it's under
12,000, it obviously is different. Because they
made a statenent that it's over 12,000. |Is there
anot her nunber, a 20,000, that it goes up bigger?
That's | think what Tomis asking is --

M5. WERKING It's opposite.

MR. HACKER -- are there variance --
differences for different size |lots?

M5. WERKING It's opposite. The
smaller the lot, the nore -- and 12,000 and over is
33 percent, so --

MR RITCH E: You could tear your house
down and build a | arge chicken coop, and you' d be
in -- other questions? ay. Thank you, Sally.

Al right. At this point in tine,
we'll hear fromthe applicant, who has submtted
t he variance, and | assune this is M. Driver
acting as the applicant's representative.

MR. DRIVER  Applicant's
representative. Thank you. My nane is Marshal
Driver. [|I'man architect. M address is 1701 Live
Gak Park, Johns Island, South Carolina. |'mhere
this afternoon representing, as we tal ked about,

Vi cki e and Russ Lockridge. They're sorry that they

can't be here this afternoon but appreciate very
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much you taking your tinme to review our request.

The Lockridges built 248 A en Abbey in
2003, and since that tine, it's served as a second
home for the famly including three children and
nost recently their first grandchild, Henry.

The proposed i nprovenents are intended
to help continue the enjoynent of this famly. It
Is not a rental house. They wanted to be sure that
ever ybody understood that.

As stated in the letter of intent, the
position of the oak trees in the front yard
originally required that the hone be | ocated
farther fromthe street increasing the size and
| ength of the driveway. And secondly, by avoiding
these trees in the front yard, the conplexity of
the driveway design also increased, which inpacted
the | ot coverage.

MR RITCHE Can | ask you a question
at this point in tinme?

MR. DRIVER  Sure, sure.

MR RITCH E: Wre you the original
architect of the house?

MR. DRIVER W were not.

MR SIMS: And did you say that the

applicant is the builder? They built the house

Clark and Associates Inc.
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initially? They're the first owner?

MR. DRIVER Yes. They're the first
owner. W believe that these existing conditions
and the proposed inprovenents are in concert wth
the natural conditions of this site, and two, the
spirit of the neighborhood, and three, the intent
of the regul ations, and we appreciate your
t houghtful consideration. And |I'd be glad to
answer any questions that the board m ght have.

MR RITCHE Well, I'll start off.
When | went and | ooked at the property, | have to
admt | was a little nystified because what you're
proposing to do -- assumng you're standing in
front of the house -- on the right-hand side is to
renove that small deck area, correct?

MR. DRIVER  Correct.

MR RITCHE  And |I'm assum ng that
al so neans the stairs?

MR DRIVER No, sir.

MR RITCH E: No, sir. Gkay. No.
There is a set of stairs on that side.

MR. DRIVER Yeah. On the right-hand
side, there's a set of stairs up fromgrade to a
smal | deck. And they | ooked at that deck area, and

the only thing that it's really served as a purpose

Clark and Associates Inc.
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was to -- for a position for the grill, and they
thought it was larger than it needed to be. So
they said, well, in good faith, we could reduce
that somewhat to help to deal with the coverage
si tuation.

MR RITCH E  Okay. But in other
words, the stairs would renmain, and the purpose of
the stairs on the right-hand side would still be to
have access to the screened porch?

MR. DRIVER  Correct.

MR RITCH E: ay. Second question |
have is in -- I'"'mnow on the |eft-hand side of the
house, not the right-hand side, where we're talking
about putting in this pool. As | look at this
thing, | assunme this is a |ap pool?

MR DRIVER It's really only about 15
feet long by about 6 feet wide, so probably by
definition couldn't do too many |aps in that pool.
And the thought is that the pool woul d be about
three-and-a-half to four feet deep, so really just
a wadi ng pool nore than anyt hing.

MR RITCH E  Oay. The other thing is
that you have -- as | look at that thing, there is
an oak tree alnost right at the very corner of

where you're -- where you propose to put this thing

Clark and Associates Inc.
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in. | nmean, if you were in the pool and you
reached down, you could touch the tree. | nean, it
woul dn't be difficult at all.

MR DRIVER Well, there are two oak
trees there. One of themis a Laurel oak, and
that's slated to be renoved as part of this
construction, and then there's a |live oak tree
whi ch occurs -- let's see -- to the -- maybe it
woul d be to the sout hwest corner, you know, which
woul d be close to the planter, but the planter and
the deck area are closer to that tree. The pool is
actually closer to the golf course.

MR RITCH E  Ckay.

MR. LARSEN. Along those lines, |I think
at our neeting two nonths ago, we conplinented the
applicant for laying out tape so that we could tell
exactly what was bei ng done and where, and in this
case, | was clueless. There was no tape out there.
There were a couple of stake sticks in the ground,
and it was inpossible toreally tell where it was
according to, you know, the planned extension.

MR DRI VER  kay.

MR. LARSEN. That was just one thing.
But referring to your design, |'m confused about

the 30-foot setback fromthe golf course because it
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| ooks |i ke the pool and planter and addi ng the
square footage extends beyond the 30 feet on the
| eft.

MR RITCHE | read it just went right
to the line.

MR. LARSEN. Well, the dotted line
t hough is across here, and he's out here.

MR SIMS: There's two dotted |ines.

MR. HACKER: The little lines you're
| ooking at, Charlie, are just giving information on
how wi de the lines are. It all stops just inside
the dotted |ine.

MR. LARSEN: |'m |l ooking at a 30-foot
set back |ine, dot, dot, dot, 15-foot setback on the
right and left, and | see pool and planter over
that dotted line. AmI| wong?

MR RITCHE It's looking |like the
architect answered that, but | think it's right on
the Iine.

MR BURKE: | think it ends at the
l'i ne.

MR RITCH E |Is our supposition on
t hat correct?

MR DRIVER Could | come over and --

MR. RITCH E: Absol utely.

Clark and Associates Inc.
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MR. DRIVER  Thank you.

MR. LARSEN. And again, that's where
the tape woul d hel p understand the schemati cs.

MR DRIVER | certainly appreciate
that. This is actually the setback line, this one.

MR. LARSEN. So nothing is going to be
over that?

MR DRIVER It's not intended that
anyt hing woul d be on the golf course side or on the
set back -- side yard setback.

MR. LARSEN:. Thank you.

MR RITCH E |Is everybody clear that
it would not be over the setback [ine? Ckay.
kay. Other questions that the board may have of
M. Driver.

MR. HACKER: You're show ng the planter
along the ot line towards 249. \What type of
planting are you -- is that -- is that like a
barrier planting, or just there's going to be | ow
shrubs init?

MR. DRIVER The planter is to be
el evat ed about 30 inches above the deck |evel,
whi ch woul d be above the pool |evel, and then sone
smal | | andscaping within the planter, shrubbery.

It's not |arge enough for any tree scape, per se.
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But I think that there was sone
sensitivity when we went through the process wth
respect to the pool on the other side, so not only
for their own privacy but also for the privacy of
t he adjacent property we thought that el evating
that planter as well as putting in sone | ow
| andscapi ng woul d be a conplenent to the situation.

MR. BURKE: What's the structure going
to look |ike fromthe side?

MR DRIVER It would be bl ock
construction, you know, wth stucco application
whi ch woul d be simlar to the foundation stucco on
the rest of the house. So the undercarriage of the
pool, because it's elevated a full story, would be
bl ock work and then stucco covering that.

MR BURKE: Ckay.

M5. ZISK: In addition to the Laurel
oak that you nentioned woul d be com ng down, are
there any trees that have to be renoved for this
construction?

MR DRIVER That's the only tree. W
had an arborist take a | ook at the Laurel oak as
well as the live oak that's close to it. There may
need to be sone pruning done in the |ive oak just

because we'd want to prepare it for the
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construction process, but it's supposed to be in
good health and he felt like the position was okay.

MR RITCH E Oher questions that the
board has of M. Driver? Ckay. W thank you very
much.

MR DRI VER  Thank you.

MR RITCHE Al right. Seeing that
the only person other than Al Burnaford and the
staff and Ms. O sen here, who | don't think is here
to speak either for or against this granting of
this variance, I wll now call this part of the
proceedi ngs to a cl ose.

And at this point in tinme, the chair
will entertain a notion on this particular
variance. kay. Hearing a resounding quiet, the
chair wll make a notion that the granting of this
vari ance be di sapproved because it does not neet
the requi renents of section 12A-509, criteria 3 and
7 of the variance. |Is there a second to the
noti on?

M5. ZI SK:  Second.

MR RITCH E: kay. Discussion?

M5. ZISK: In addition to not neeting
the sections 3 and 7 as pointed out by the board, |

do worry that it also doesn't satisfy nunber 1
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about extraordinary or exceptional conditions
created the need for this variance.

And it seens, you know, the nore
vari ance requests we hear, this is a problem many
property owners face and, in fact, at our | ast
hearing, the board unani nously denied a request for
a variance for very simlar reasons.

Wi | e each property |ayout is unique,
calling for a different variance, the reasons for
this one seemso simlar to the |ast because of the
| ayout of the property, and that doesn't seemto
satisfy even nunber 1 for getting -- for creating
an exception, which is why | think that this
vari ance shoul d not be granted.

MR RITCH E: Thank you. Ron?

MR HACKER: |I'mvery frustrated with
this because it's already al nbst 32 square feet
over coverage because if you do the math, it's over
33 percent coverage right now.

So when it was originally approved by
t he ARB, soneone was saying, we want this huge
driveway, and | have a feeling if the pool was on
it at that tinme, it would have been approved too.
In other words, the whole idea was, we've got this

hunmongous driveway. So then | start thinking --
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you know, but yet, the rules are the rules.

Then | went out and | ooked at the house
and saw this driveway, but then | saw all the
shrubbery, and the whol e i dea was to nake sonet hi ng
green and good | ooking and conformw th what we
want on the island, and they've done a great job
Wi th this huge driveway.

So what do we do? W say -- do we
approve it and say, you' ve done a good job, and
you' re already over; you can be sone nore. O do
we say, you rip out one of the turnarounds, and you
don't even have to cone to the board, and it's
not -- it's wiwthin conpliance because it's under
coverage. So that's the dil emm.

Do we rip it up and say, get rid of
part of your driveway to be conformng? And |
don't think it -- it looks like it conformnms other
than the fact that it's sitting back further. And
that's ny dil enmma.

MR RITCHE R p up part of the
driveway, it would probably be hard to use one of
t he garages.

MR. HACKER: Well, |I'mnot saying --
take out a turnaround. |In other words, you could

only back out of one side is basically what you're
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sayi ng because it still could be done. That's what
you're -- you're fighting wwth the driveway. O
you nmake the driveway a foot-and-a-half snaller on
each side so that -- the practical part of this is
what |'m struggling wth.

MR. SIMS: Just a comment about the
driveway. The ARB has devel oped their rationale
for approving this on the trees, preservation of
the trees. And yet, the design of the house
initially was as conpelling a reason for using up
the square footage as the trees. There was no -- |
mean, you coul d have designed the house with a
single driveway as opposed to the double front
| oadi ng garage concept.

MR RITCHE |'msure that was done
for an architectural bal ance, so --

MR SIMS: That's right. But
neverthel ess, the decision was nmade at that tine to
use the square footage for that purpose, and this
s kind of an after-the-fact, the determ nation of,
well, now we're going to try to do sonething el se,
again using the trees for the rationale, and I find
that not a conpelling argunent.

MR RITCH E: Ckay.

MR. LARSEN: | would go along fromthe
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st andpoi nt of there was a choice to nake a grand
design, which they did. | nean, that's a terrific
| ooking driveway. But we do that versus other

choi ces you m ght have.

And | al so wonder -- according to
earlier conversation, it wouldn't be hard to nake
sone of the driveway pine straw, reduce the
coverage that way, and build their pool. So there
are many alternatives other than just kind of an
I n-your-face to the 33 percent.

MR BURKE: | think I felt the sane
reaction that Ron had in that we like to
acconmmodat e the | andowner, but at the sane point in
time, we have guidelines for a reason. And unless
there is a conpelling reason to violate the
guideline, it doesn't seemto be the right thing to
do.

And | think in this case, the owner
didn't really help us too nuch to get to a
conprom sed solution that would give himor her the
pool and ease off on either both sides of the
turnouts or to take out sone board footage fromthe
porch or the deck.

MR RITCHE Oher comments? Okay.

|'"'mgoing to call the question. Al those in favor
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of -- let nme get this right before | say it. Al
those in favor of denying the variance request of
case nunber BZAV-7-11-11552, please signify by
sayi ng aye.

ALL: Aye.

MR RITCH E: Qpposed?

kay. Let the record reflect that the
deci sion of the board was unani nous, that this
granting of the variance woul d be di sapproved in
t hi s case.

kay. |Is there anything el se that

needs to cone before the board at this tinme? Ckay.

W stand adj ourned. Thank you.

(The hearing was adjourned at 4:39

p.m)
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            1               MR. RITCHIE:  Okay.  We're going to



            2   call the August 15th meeting of the Board of Zoning



            3   Appeals for Kiawah Island to order.  The board



            4   members who will hear the case today are Ron



            5   Hacker, Tom Burke, Nancy Zisk, Herk Sims, Charlie



            6   Larsen, and myself, Ron Ritchie.  The staff people



            7   present are Sally Brooks and Jenny Werking, and



            8   Sally Rhoad is here pinch hitting for her husband,



            9   Dennis.



           10               Our case rulings from this and any



           11   other BZA meeting are available for public review



           12   and inspection during normal business hours right



           13   here at Town Hall.  At this time, I'm obligated to



           14   explain the workings of the BZA.  We are a



           15   quasi-judicial body established to interpret and



           16   grant relief from the zoning ordinance.



           17               Today we're going to hear a variance



           18   request.  Variances may be granted when strict



           19   application of the zoning ordinance would create an



           20   unnecessary hardship.  This board's action must be



           21   based on specific standards as contained in the



           22   South Carolina Local Government Planning Enabling



           23   Act of 1994 as well as this Town's Zoning



           24   Ordinance.  A simple majority vote of the quorum



           25   present is required to grant a variance.
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            1               Because today's hearing is a public



            2   fact-finding meeting, we are in compliance with the



            3   Freedom of Information Act and South Carolina Code



            4   6-29-70.  15 days prior to this hearing, an



            5   announcement was printed in the Post and Courier, a



            6   sign was posted right in front of the property that



            7   we're going to hear the variance about, and a



            8   notice was mailed to the applicant or a



            9   representative, to residents within 300 feet of the



           10   application, and any other parties of interest.



           11               Persons, organizations, and news media



           12   that have requested declaration of our meeting have



           13   also been notified.  The Freedom of Information Act



           14   does not require notification of anybody other than



           15   the applicant and possible parties of interest.



           16               Our purpose today is for interested



           17   parties to be heard in order to assist the board in



           18   gathering evidence pertinent to each case.  If the



           19   members of the BZA feel the need for further



           20   information to clarify the case, we have the



           21   authority to subpoena witnesses.



           22               In addition to testimony, the board has



           23   been presented with written information submitted



           24   to the staff by the applicant or their agent in



           25   this particular case.  This information is now
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            1   considered evidence and is entered into the



            2   permanent record of this body, and we assume it is



            3   complete, true, and accurate.



            4               Also, we have been presented data



            5   assembled by the staff for the purpose of



            6   clarifying the location and the effect on



            7   surrounding property.  This board is empowered to



            8   approve, approve with conditions, or to deny the



            9   request for a variance.  We also have the option to



           10   defer a case if we think we need additional



           11   information.



           12               If an applicant's request is approved



           13   for the variance, they must go to the office of



           14   Charleston County Planning Department on Bridge



           15   View Drive, that's up in North Charleston, to



           16   obtain a permit.  Variances granted by the BZA are



           17   valid for 12 months after the date of this hearing.



           18               However, if the request is disapproved



           19   and the applicant wishes to appeal the decision of



           20   the board, appeals must be addressed to the Circuit



           21   Court.  South Carolina Code 6-29-820 states that



           22   the appeal must be filed by the applicant within 30



           23   days after the decision of the board is mailed to



           24   the applicant, not today's date, 30 days after it's



           25   mailed.  Failure to file an appeal within the time
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            1   limit deprives the Court of the jurisdiction to



            2   hear the matter.



            3               Because this is a quasi-judicial body,



            4   everything said in this meeting must be completely



            5   true and accurate.  All the information provided to



            6   the BZA is considered evidence, and this board may



            7   certify contempt of Circuit Court if false



            8   statements are made, either in writing or orally.



            9               Because of this, each person who wishes



           10   to address the board on this particular variance



           11   request will be sworn in.  I now ask everybody who



           12   is going to speak this afternoon either for or



           13   against this variance if they would please stand



           14   and be sworn in.



           15               (Witnesses sworn.)



           16               MR. RITCHIE:  Thank you.  I shall now



           17   call case BZAV-7-11-11552 concerning the property



           18   at 248 Glen Abbey.  The staff will now present



           19   facts pertinent to the case.  I shall then call the



           20   applicant to address the case.  I would ask that



           21   the applicant or the applicant's representative



           22   please stand, go over to the podium, state their



           23   name and their current address.



           24               I will then ask for all those speaking



           25   either for or against this case.  And we then are
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            1   going to close the hearing, and I'm going to ask



            2   the board for a motion on this particular variance.



            3   The board will then have a discussion and then vote



            4   on the case.



            5               The chair will announce for the record



            6   who made the motion and seconded the motion and how



            7   members voted, yes, no, or abstained.  After the



            8   vote, the chair announces for the record the legal



            9   reasons for the decision.



           10               Okay.  Sally, you're on.



           11               MS. BROOKS:  Okay.  Thanks.  The



           12   applicant, Marshall Driver, is requesting a



           13   variance to increase the required 33 percent



           14   maximum lot coverage by 3 percent to 36 percent at



           15   238 Glen Abbey in the residential (R-1) zoning



           16   district within the developed lands of Kiawah



           17   Island.



           18               The property owner is Vickie Frazier



           19   Lockridge.  The property is 14,994.5 square feet in



           20   size with a 25-foot front setback along Glen Abbey,



           21   a 15-foot side yard setback, and a 30-foot rear



           22   yard setback along the golf course.  The current



           23   lot coverage is 4,980 square feet, which is 33



           24   percent.



           25               12A-205 (R-1), Residential, Table 2B:
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            1   Lot Standards of the Town of Kiawah Island Land Use



            2   Planning/Zoning Ordinance requires a maximum lot



            3   coverage of 33 percent when the lot size is 12,000



            4   square feet or greater for the (R-1) single-family



            5   detached dwelling.



            6               The ordinance defines lot coverage as,



            7   quote, total percentage of lot area that is



            8   impervious, including buildings and pervious



            9   driveways and walkways and other pervious paved



           10   areas including pervious decks and porches, end



           11   quote.



           12               The applicant is requesting the



           13   increased lot coverage in order to construct an



           14   addition off the existing screened-in porch at the



           15   rear of the residence.  The site plan depicts the



           16   addition that consists of an elevated pool, pool



           17   deck, and planter equalling 325 square feet.  The



           18   applicant proposes to remove 36 square feet of the



           19   deck on the opposite side of the screened-in porch.



           20               The Kiawah Island Architectural Review



           21   Board variance request approval dated June 29th,



           22   2011, states, quote, ARB approved due to existing



           23   home location driven by preservation of trees which



           24   caused need for extra coverage and, therefore, no



           25   ability to expand footprint without variance, end
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            1   quote.



            2               The variance criteria used noted on the



            3   Kiawah Island ARB letter states, quote, the



            4   original design allowed for the conservation of



            5   several live oak trees in the front yard.  This



            6   concept positioned the footprint of the house



            7   farther from the street, increasing the size and



            8   complexity of the driveway, end quote.



            9               The applicant's letter of intent



           10   explains, quote, the site plan depicts that there



           11   are six live oak trees in the front yard of the



           12   site that were retained as part of the original



           13   design and necessitated positioning the home



           14   farther from the street which increased the size,



           15   complexity, and coverage of the driveway, end



           16   quote.



           17               A site visit was conducted on July



           18   27th, 2011, at which time the following



           19   determinations were made regarding the approval



           20   criteria for variances as stated in Article 12 of



           21   the Town of Kiawah Island Code of Ordinances,



           22   Article 12A, Land Use Planning, Zoning, Section



           23   12A-509.4.



           24               Findings of fact:  Criteria 1:  There



           25   are extraordinary and exceptional conditions
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            1   pertaining to the particular piece of property.



            2               Staff's response:  There may be



            3   extraordinary and exceptional conditions pertaining



            4   to the property due to the position and layout of



            5   the existing residence and driveway.  The residence



            6   is set back away from the roadway and has a double



            7   front loading garage underneath.  The driveway



            8   splits to access each garage door and has a



            9   turnaround area on each side for egress from each



           10   garage.



           11               It appears that the driveway was



           12   configured to avoid a cluster of oak trees in the



           13   middle of the front yard.  The driveway alone



           14   covers 13.9 percent of the lot area.



           15               Criteria 2:  These conditions do not



           16   generally apply to other property in the vicinity.



           17               Staff's response:  These conditions may



           18   not generally apply to other properties in the



           19   vicinity because lot configuration varies



           20   throughout the surrounding area due to site



           21   specific conditions.



           22               Criteria 3:  Because of these



           23   conditions, the application of this ordinance to



           24   the particular piece of property would effectively



           25   prohibit or unreasonably restrict the utilization
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            1   of the property.



            2               Staff's response:  The application of



            3   this ordinance to 248 Glen Abbey would not prohibit



            4   the utilization of the property; however, the



            5   application of this ordinance would restrict the



            6   addition of the pool to this particular piece of



            7   property.



            8               Criteria 4:  The authorization of the



            9   variance will not be of substantial detriment to



           10   adjacent property or to the public good, and the



           11   character of the zoning district will not be harmed



           12   by the granting of the variance.



           13               Staff's response:  The authorization of



           14   this variance may not be of substantial detriment



           15   to the adjacent properties as long as the existing



           16   vegetation, which creates a natural buffer along



           17   the side property line, is protected in order to



           18   provide adequate screening and preserve the



           19   character of the zoning district.



           20               Criteria 5:  The Board of Zoning



           21   Appeals shall not grant a variance the effect of



           22   which would be to allow the establishment of a use



           23   not otherwise permitted in a zoning district, to



           24   extend physically a nonconforming use of land or to



           25   change the zoning district boundaries shown on the
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            1   official zoning map.



            2               Staff's response:  Granting of this



            3   variance would not allow the establishment of a use



            4   not otherwise permitted in this zoning district,



            5   extend physically a nonconforming use of land, or



            6   change the zoning district boundaries.



            7               Criteria 6:  The fact that property may



            8   be utilized more profitably should a variance be



            9   granted may not be considered grounds for a



           10   variance.



           11               Staff's response:  The property may be



           12   utilized more profitably if this variance is



           13   granted.



           14               Criteria 7:  The need for the variance



           15   shall not be the result of the applicant's own



           16   actions.



           17               Staff's response:  The applicant's



           18   letter of intent contends, quote, the need for the



           19   requested variance is not a result of the



           20   applicant's own actions but a reflection of the



           21   natural environmental conditions and the site



           22   configuration, end quote.



           23               Additionally, the variance request



           24   approval from the Kiawah Island ARB dated June



           25   29th, 2011, states, quote, the original design
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            1   allowed for the conservation of several live oak



            2   trees in the front yard.  This concept positioned



            3   the footprint of the house further from the street



            4   increasing the size and complexity of the driveway,



            5   end quote.



            6               However, a pool is an accessory



            7   structure that is incidental and subordinate to the



            8   principal single-family residence.  Therefore the



            9   need for the variance may be created by the



           10   applicant's own actions.



           11               Criteria 8:  Granting the variance will



           12   not be contrary to the public or neighbor interest



           13   nor will not adversely affect other property in the



           14   vicinity nor interfere with the harmony, spirit,



           15   intent, and purpose of these regulations.



           16               Staff's response:  Granting of this



           17   variance may not be contrary to the public or



           18   neighborhood interest, may not adversely affect



           19   other property in the vicinity nor interfere with



           20   the harmony, spirit, intent, and purpose of these



           21   regulations as long as existing natural features



           22   including trees are preserved.



           23               Criteria 9:  Granting of the variance



           24   does not substantially conflict with the



           25   comprehensive plan or the purposes of this
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            1   ordinance.



            2               Staff's response:  Granting of this



            3   variance may not substantially conflict with the



            4   comprehensive plan or the purposes of this



            5   ordinance.  Housing element 8, goals 1,



            6   implementation strategy A of the comprehensive plan



            7   states, quote, provide mechanisms to permit



            8   flexibility and innovation in residential project



            9   design to promote land use efficiency and



           10   environmental protection, end quote.



           11               Staff recommendation:  This request may



           12   not meet the requirements of the section 12A-509,



           13   criteria 3 and 7, variances, as stated in the



           14   staff's responses and the findings of fact.



           15               Action:  The Board of Zoning Appeals



           16   may approve, approve with conditions, or deny case



           17   number BZAV-7-11-11552 based on the findings of



           18   fact unless additional information is deemed



           19   necessary to make an informed decision.  Are there



           20   any questions of staff?



           21               MR. RITCHIE:  Board have any questions



           22   of staff?



           23               MR. BURKE:  I notice that the adjacent



           24   property seems to have a pool as well.  Do you



           25   happen to know what the lot coverage is on that
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            1   site?



            2               MS. BROOKS:  I do not.  No, I don't.



            3               MR. RITCHIE:  You have to make the



            4   assumption, though, it would be 33 percent or less,



            5   assume that.



            6               MR. BURKE:  Well, it could have had a



            7   variance too.



            8               MR. RITCHIE:  Could have.



            9               MR. LARSEN:  I had a question related



           10   to that.  And I meant to look up impervious and



           11   pervious as in the -- page 1 in the staff review,



           12   second paragraph.  Because that house, 287, has a



           13   stone driveway, crushed stone.



           14               MS. BROOKS:  Yeah.



           15               MR. LARSEN:  My question is if this



           16   driveway were crushed stone, does that count as



           17   part of the 33 percent?



           18               MS. BROOKS:  It would -- under the



           19   definition in the ordinance, even a stone driveway,



           20   gravel, would count toward lot coverage.



           21               MR. LARSEN:  So it doesn't matter if



           22   it's paved or not paved?



           23               MS. BROOKS:  That's correct.



           24               MR. SIMS:  Follow-up to that.  At what



           25   point does a driveway cease to be a part of the 33
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            1   and a third percent?  For instance, if it were



            2   grass?



            3               MS. BROOKS:  That would be a case where



            4   it would not be considered --



            5               MR. SIMS:  If it were pine straw?



            6               MS. BROOKS:  That would not be



            7   considered lot coverage either.



            8               MR. SIMS:  If it were pine bark?  So at



            9   what point does it cease to be pervious --



           10               MR. LARSEN:  Pervious or impervious.



           11               MR. SIMS:  -- and become part of the --



           12               MS. BROOKS:  I would say if it were



           13   gravel or like a paver of some sort, that's where



           14   we draw the line, I suppose.  We could get a



           15   further determination on that from Dan, but I mean,



           16   that's how I would say.



           17               MR. SIMS:  So it's fuzzy?



           18               MS. BROOKS:  To interpretation.



           19               MR. RITCHIE:  Okay, Sally.  I think



           20   everybody's asked questions that they'd like to.



           21   Thank you.



           22               MR. BURKE:  I do -- I'm sorry.



           23               MR. RITCHIE:  Oh, sorry.  Go ahead.



           24               MR. BURKE:  Most of the time when we



           25   look at these cases, the lot coverage seems to be
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            1   36 percent.  Is there a high incidence of 33



            2   percent on Kiawah?



            3               MS. BROOKS:  As in people maximizing



            4   their lot coverage?  I would say.



            5               MR. BURKE:  Well, I mean, are there a



            6   lot of streets that are 33 percent?  Our street is



            7   36.



            8               MS. WERKING:  They're either 33 or 40



            9   percent.



           10               MS. BROOKS:  Right.  The only cases, I



           11   guess, where we would be able to approve



           12   administratively something over 33 percent or



           13   whatever it's listed, if it is in the undeveloped



           14   lands where we can do a 20 percent -- or 10 percent



           15   administrative increase through the development



           16   agreement, but --



           17               MS. WERKING:  And then there's cases of



           18   legal nonconforming.  And what happens in those is



           19   if you're really supposed to be 33 percent, but



           20   you're already 36 and you're wanting to -- we do



           21   allow that, like if you're wanting to switch out



           22   something for something else, as long as it stays



           23   33.  You can't go to -- or sorry.  36.  You



           24   couldn't go to 36.1.



           25               MR. HACKER:  Or is it a function of how
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            1   many square feet the lot is?  Because if it's under



            2   12,000, it obviously is different.  Because they



            3   made a statement that it's over 12,000.  Is there



            4   another number, a 20,000, that it goes up bigger?



            5   That's I think what Tom is asking is --



            6               MS. WERKING:  It's opposite.



            7               MR. HACKER:  -- are there variance --



            8   differences for different size lots?



            9               MS. WERKING:  It's opposite.  The



           10   smaller the lot, the more -- and 12,000 and over is



           11   33 percent, so --



           12               MR. RITCHIE:  You could tear your house



           13   down and build a large chicken coop, and you'd be



           14   in -- other questions?  Okay.  Thank you, Sally.



           15               All right.  At this point in time,



           16   we'll hear from the applicant, who has submitted



           17   the variance, and I assume this is Mr. Driver



           18   acting as the applicant's representative.



           19               MR. DRIVER:  Applicant's



           20   representative.  Thank you.  My name is Marshall



           21   Driver.  I'm an architect.  My address is 1701 Live



           22   Oak Park, Johns Island, South Carolina.  I'm here



           23   this afternoon representing, as we talked about,



           24   Vickie and Russ Lockridge.  They're sorry that they



           25   can't be here this afternoon but appreciate very
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            1   much you taking your time to review our request.



            2               The Lockridges built 248 Glen Abbey in



            3   2003, and since that time, it's served as a second



            4   home for the family including three children and



            5   most recently their first grandchild, Henry.



            6               The proposed improvements are intended



            7   to help continue the enjoyment of this family.  It



            8   is not a rental house.  They wanted to be sure that



            9   everybody understood that.



           10               As stated in the letter of intent, the



           11   position of the oak trees in the front yard



           12   originally required that the home be located



           13   farther from the street increasing the size and



           14   length of the driveway.  And secondly, by avoiding



           15   these trees in the front yard, the complexity of



           16   the driveway design also increased, which impacted



           17   the lot coverage.



           18               MR. RITCHIE:  Can I ask you a question



           19   at this point in time?



           20               MR. DRIVER:  Sure, sure.



           21               MR. RITCHIE:  Were you the original



           22   architect of the house?



           23               MR. DRIVER:  We were not.



           24               MR. SIMS:  And did you say that the



           25   applicant is the builder?  They built the house
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            1   initially?  They're the first owner?



            2               MR. DRIVER:  Yes.  They're the first



            3   owner.  We believe that these existing conditions



            4   and the proposed improvements are in concert with



            5   the natural conditions of this site, and two, the



            6   spirit of the neighborhood, and three, the intent



            7   of the regulations, and we appreciate your



            8   thoughtful consideration.  And I'd be glad to



            9   answer any questions that the board might have.



           10               MR. RITCHIE:  Well, I'll start off.



           11   When I went and looked at the property, I have to



           12   admit I was a little mystified because what you're



           13   proposing to do -- assuming you're standing in



           14   front of the house -- on the right-hand side is to



           15   remove that small deck area, correct?



           16               MR. DRIVER:  Correct.



           17               MR. RITCHIE:  And I'm assuming that



           18   also means the stairs?



           19               MR. DRIVER:  No, sir.



           20               MR. RITCHIE:  No, sir.  Okay.  No.



           21   There is a set of stairs on that side.



           22               MR. DRIVER:  Yeah.  On the right-hand



           23   side, there's a set of stairs up from grade to a



           24   small deck.  And they looked at that deck area, and



           25   the only thing that it's really served as a purpose
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            1   was to -- for a position for the grill, and they



            2   thought it was larger than it needed to be.  So



            3   they said, well, in good faith, we could reduce



            4   that somewhat to help to deal with the coverage



            5   situation.



            6               MR. RITCHIE:  Okay.  But in other



            7   words, the stairs would remain, and the purpose of



            8   the stairs on the right-hand side would still be to



            9   have access to the screened porch?



           10               MR. DRIVER:  Correct.



           11               MR. RITCHIE:  Okay.  Second question I



           12   have is in -- I'm now on the left-hand side of the



           13   house, not the right-hand side, where we're talking



           14   about putting in this pool.  As I look at this



           15   thing, I assume this is a lap pool?



           16               MR. DRIVER:  It's really only about 15



           17   feet long by about 6 feet wide, so probably by



           18   definition couldn't do too many laps in that pool.



           19   And the thought is that the pool would be about



           20   three-and-a-half to four feet deep, so really just



           21   a wading pool more than anything.



           22               MR. RITCHIE:  Okay.  The other thing is



           23   that you have -- as I look at that thing, there is



           24   an oak tree almost right at the very corner of



           25   where you're -- where you propose to put this thing
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            1   in.  I mean, if you were in the pool and you



            2   reached down, you could touch the tree.  I mean, it



            3   wouldn't be difficult at all.



            4               MR. DRIVER:  Well, there are two oak



            5   trees there.  One of them is a Laurel oak, and



            6   that's slated to be removed as part of this



            7   construction, and then there's a live oak tree



            8   which occurs -- let's see -- to the -- maybe it



            9   would be to the southwest corner, you know, which



           10   would be close to the planter, but the planter and



           11   the deck area are closer to that tree.  The pool is



           12   actually closer to the golf course.



           13               MR. RITCHIE:  Okay.



           14               MR. LARSEN:  Along those lines, I think



           15   at our meeting two months ago, we complimented the



           16   applicant for laying out tape so that we could tell



           17   exactly what was being done and where, and in this



           18   case, I was clueless.  There was no tape out there.



           19   There were a couple of stake sticks in the ground,



           20   and it was impossible to really tell where it was



           21   according to, you know, the planned extension.



           22               MR. DRIVER:  Okay.



           23               MR. LARSEN:  That was just one thing.



           24   But referring to your design, I'm confused about



           25   the 30-foot setback from the golf course because it
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            1   looks like the pool and planter and adding the



            2   square footage extends beyond the 30 feet on the



            3   left.



            4               MR. RITCHIE:  I read it just went right



            5   to the line.



            6               MR. LARSEN:  Well, the dotted line



            7   though is across here, and he's out here.



            8               MR. SIMS:  There's two dotted lines.



            9               MR. HACKER:  The little lines you're



           10   looking at, Charlie, are just giving information on



           11   how wide the lines are.  It all stops just inside



           12   the dotted line.



           13               MR. LARSEN:  I'm looking at a 30-foot



           14   setback line, dot, dot, dot, 15-foot setback on the



           15   right and left, and I see pool and planter over



           16   that dotted line.  Am I wrong?



           17               MR. RITCHIE:  It's looking like the



           18   architect answered that, but I think it's right on



           19   the line.



           20               MR. BURKE:  I think it ends at the



           21   line.



           22               MR. RITCHIE:  Is our supposition on



           23   that correct?



           24               MR. DRIVER:  Could I come over and --



           25               MR. RITCHIE:  Absolutely.
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            1               MR. DRIVER:  Thank you.



            2               MR. LARSEN:  And again, that's where



            3   the tape would help understand the schematics.



            4               MR. DRIVER:  I certainly appreciate



            5   that.  This is actually the setback line, this one.



            6               MR. LARSEN:  So nothing is going to be



            7   over that?



            8               MR. DRIVER:  It's not intended that



            9   anything would be on the golf course side or on the



           10   setback -- side yard setback.



           11               MR. LARSEN:  Thank you.



           12               MR. RITCHIE:  Is everybody clear that



           13   it would not be over the setback line?  Okay.



           14   Okay.  Other questions that the board may have of



           15   Mr. Driver.



           16               MR. HACKER:  You're showing the planter



           17   along the lot line towards 249.  What type of



           18   planting are you -- is that -- is that like a



           19   barrier planting, or just there's going to be low



           20   shrubs in it?



           21               MR. DRIVER:  The planter is to be



           22   elevated about 30 inches above the deck level,



           23   which would be above the pool level, and then some



           24   small landscaping within the planter, shrubbery.



           25   It's not large enough for any tree scape, per se.
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            1               But I think that there was some



            2   sensitivity when we went through the process with



            3   respect to the pool on the other side, so not only



            4   for their own privacy but also for the privacy of



            5   the adjacent property we thought that elevating



            6   that planter as well as putting in some low



            7   landscaping would be a complement to the situation.



            8               MR. BURKE:  What's the structure going



            9   to look like from the side?



           10               MR. DRIVER:  It would be block



           11   construction, you know, with stucco application



           12   which would be similar to the foundation stucco on



           13   the rest of the house.  So the undercarriage of the



           14   pool, because it's elevated a full story, would be



           15   block work and then stucco covering that.



           16               MR. BURKE:  Okay.



           17               MS. ZISK:  In addition to the Laurel



           18   oak that you mentioned would be coming down, are



           19   there any trees that have to be removed for this



           20   construction?



           21               MR. DRIVER:  That's the only tree.  We



           22   had an arborist take a look at the Laurel oak as



           23   well as the live oak that's close to it.  There may



           24   need to be some pruning done in the live oak just



           25   because we'd want to prepare it for the
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            1   construction process, but it's supposed to be in



            2   good health and he felt like the position was okay.



            3               MR. RITCHIE:  Other questions that the



            4   board has of Mr. Driver?  Okay.  We thank you very



            5   much.



            6               MR. DRIVER:  Thank you.



            7               MR. RITCHIE:  All right.  Seeing that



            8   the only person other than Al Burnaford and the



            9   staff and Ms. Olsen here, who I don't think is here



           10   to speak either for or against this granting of



           11   this variance, I will now call this part of the



           12   proceedings to a close.



           13               And at this point in time, the chair



           14   will entertain a motion on this particular



           15   variance.  Okay.  Hearing a resounding quiet, the



           16   chair will make a motion that the granting of this



           17   variance be disapproved because it does not meet



           18   the requirements of section 12A-509, criteria 3 and



           19   7 of the variance.  Is there a second to the



           20   motion?



           21               MS. ZISK:  Second.



           22               MR. RITCHIE:  Okay.  Discussion?



           23               MS. ZISK:  In addition to not meeting



           24   the sections 3 and 7 as pointed out by the board, I



           25   do worry that it also doesn't satisfy number 1
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            1   about extraordinary or exceptional conditions



            2   created the need for this variance.



            3               And it seems, you know, the more



            4   variance requests we hear, this is a problem many



            5   property owners face and, in fact, at our last



            6   hearing, the board unanimously denied a request for



            7   a variance for very similar reasons.



            8               While each property layout is unique,



            9   calling for a different variance, the reasons for



           10   this one seem so similar to the last because of the



           11   layout of the property, and that doesn't seem to



           12   satisfy even number 1 for getting -- for creating



           13   an exception, which is why I think that this



           14   variance should not be granted.



           15               MR. RITCHIE:  Thank you.  Ron?



           16               MR. HACKER:  I'm very frustrated with



           17   this because it's already almost 32 square feet



           18   over coverage because if you do the math, it's over



           19   33 percent coverage right now.



           20               So when it was originally approved by



           21   the ARB, someone was saying, we want this huge



           22   driveway, and I have a feeling if the pool was on



           23   it at that time, it would have been approved too.



           24   In other words, the whole idea was, we've got this



           25   humongous driveway.  So then I start thinking --
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            1   you know, but yet, the rules are the rules.



            2               Then I went out and looked at the house



            3   and saw this driveway, but then I saw all the



            4   shrubbery, and the whole idea was to make something



            5   green and good looking and conform with what we



            6   want on the island, and they've done a great job



            7   with this huge driveway.



            8               So what do we do?  We say -- do we



            9   approve it and say, you've done a good job, and



           10   you're already over; you can be some more.  Or do



           11   we say, you rip out one of the turnarounds, and you



           12   don't even have to come to the board, and it's



           13   not -- it's within compliance because it's under



           14   coverage.  So that's the dilemma.



           15               Do we rip it up and say, get rid of



           16   part of your driveway to be conforming?  And I



           17   don't think it -- it looks like it conforms other



           18   than the fact that it's sitting back further.  And



           19   that's my dilemma.



           20               MR. RITCHIE:  Rip up part of the



           21   driveway, it would probably be hard to use one of



           22   the garages.



           23               MR. HACKER:  Well, I'm not saying --



           24   take out a turnaround.  In other words, you could



           25   only back out of one side is basically what you're
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            1   saying because it still could be done.  That's what



            2   you're -- you're fighting with the driveway.  Or



            3   you make the driveway a foot-and-a-half smaller on



            4   each side so that -- the practical part of this is



            5   what I'm struggling with.



            6               MR. SIMS:  Just a comment about the



            7   driveway.  The ARB has developed their rationale



            8   for approving this on the trees, preservation of



            9   the trees.  And yet, the design of the house



           10   initially was as compelling a reason for using up



           11   the square footage as the trees.  There was no -- I



           12   mean, you could have designed the house with a



           13   single driveway as opposed to the double front



           14   loading garage concept.



           15               MR. RITCHIE:  I'm sure that was done



           16   for an architectural balance, so --



           17               MR. SIMS:  That's right.  But



           18   nevertheless, the decision was made at that time to



           19   use the square footage for that purpose, and this



           20   is kind of an after-the-fact, the determination of,



           21   well, now we're going to try to do something else,



           22   again using the trees for the rationale, and I find



           23   that not a compelling argument.



           24               MR. RITCHIE:  Okay.



           25               MR. LARSEN:  I would go along from the
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            1   standpoint of there was a choice to make a grand



            2   design, which they did.  I mean, that's a terrific



            3   looking driveway.  But we do that versus other



            4   choices you might have.



            5               And I also wonder -- according to



            6   earlier conversation, it wouldn't be hard to make



            7   some of the driveway pine straw, reduce the



            8   coverage that way, and build their pool.  So there



            9   are many alternatives other than just kind of an



           10   in-your-face to the 33 percent.



           11               MR. BURKE:  I think I felt the same



           12   reaction that Ron had in that we like to



           13   accommodate the landowner, but at the same point in



           14   time, we have guidelines for a reason.  And unless



           15   there is a compelling reason to violate the



           16   guideline, it doesn't seem to be the right thing to



           17   do.



           18               And I think in this case, the owner



           19   didn't really help us too much to get to a



           20   compromised solution that would give him or her the



           21   pool and ease off on either both sides of the



           22   turnouts or to take out some board footage from the



           23   porch or the deck.



           24               MR. RITCHIE:  Other comments?  Okay.



           25   I'm going to call the question.  All those in favor
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            1   of -- let me get this right before I say it.  All



            2   those in favor of denying the variance request of



            3   case number BZAV-7-11-11552, please signify by



            4   saying aye.



            5               ALL:  Aye.



            6               MR. RITCHIE:  Opposed?



            7               Okay.  Let the record reflect that the



            8   decision of the board was unanimous, that this



            9   granting of the variance would be disapproved in



           10   this case.



           11               Okay.  Is there anything else that



           12   needs to come before the board at this time?  Okay.



           13   We stand adjourned.  Thank you.



           14               (The hearing was adjourned at 4:39



           15   p.m.)
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